ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 12, 2013
8:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representative Charisse MIlett
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 127

"An Act clarifying that the Al aska Bar Association is an agency
for purposes of investigations by the onbudsnman; relating to
conpensati on of the onbudsman and to enploynent of staff by the
onmbudsman under personal service contracts; providing that
certain records of comunications between the onbudsman and an
agency are not public records; relating to disclosure by an
agency to the onbudsman of communications subject to attorney-
client and attorney work-product privileges; relating to
informal and formal reports of opinions and recomendations
issued by the onbudsman; relating to the privilege of the
onbudsman not to testify and creating a privilege under which
the onmbudsman is not required to disclose certain docunents;
relating to procedures for procurenent by the onbudsman;
relating to the definition of 'agency' for purposes of the
Onbudsman Act and providing jurisdiction of the onbudsman over
persons providing certain services to the state by contract; and
anmendi ng Rul es 501 and 503, Al aska Rul es of Evidence."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 8

Uging the United States Congress and the President of the
United States to work to amend the Constitution of the United
States to prohibit corporations, unions, and other organizations
from making unlimted independent expenditures supporting or
opposi ng candi dates for public office.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2013



- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 127

SHORT TITLE: OVBUDSNMAN
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST

02/ 18/ 13 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 18/ 13 (H) STA, JUD
03/ 12/ 13 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAP| TOL 106

BILL: HIR 8
SHORT TITLE. AMEND U.S. CONST. RE CAMPAI GN MONEY
SPONSOR(s): GARA

02/ 08/ 13 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 08/ 13 (H) STA, JUD

02/ 15/ 13 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
02/ 15/ 13 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 15/ 13 (H) STA, JUD

03/ 12/ 13 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAP| TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

BETH LEI BON TZ, Assistant Onbudsman

O fice of the Orbudsman

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 127.

LI NDA LORD JENKI NS, Onbudsman

Ofice of the Orbudsman

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
127.

STEVE VAN GOOR, Bar Counci

Al aska Bar Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 127.

GEORGE MEYER

Pal mer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HIR 8.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, presented HIR 8.

M KE FRANK
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 8.

KATHARI NE VEH
Sol dot na, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 8.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8. 06: 39 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
nmeeting to order at 8:06 a.m Representatives Keller, |saacson
Gattis, Hughes, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Lynn were present at the

call to order

HB 127- OVBUDSVAN

8:07:39 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 127, "An Act clarifying that the Al aska Bar Association
is an agency for purposes of investigations by the onbudsman;
relating to conpensation of the onbudsman and to enploynent of
staff by the onbudsnman under personal service contracts;
providing that certain records of comunications between the
onbudsman and an agency are not public records; relating to
di sclosure by an agency to the onbudsnman of comunications
subject to attorney-client and attorney work-product privileges;
relating to informal and formal reports of opinions and
recommendations issued by the onbudsman; relating to the
privilege of the onbudsman not to testify and creating a
privilege under which the onbudsman is not required to disclose
certain docunents; relating to procedures for procurenment by the
onbudsman; relating to the definition of 'agency' for purposes
of the Onbudsman Act and providing jurisdiction of the onmbudsnan
over persons providing certain services to the state by
contract; and anmending Rules 501 and 503, Alaska Rules of
Evi dence. "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2013



8:07:49 AM

BETH LEIBOWNTZ, Assistant Onbudsman, Ofice of the Orbudsman,
Al aska State Legislature, in response to Chair Lynn, reviewd
the function of the Ofice of the Orbudsman is to address the
concerns of people who are unhappy with a state agency. The
Ofice of the Orbudsnan determ nes whether a conplaint is
justified and, if so, what can be done to renedy the situation

She said if the office is overworked, there may be no renedy for
a valid conplaint. She said nost agencies want to correct
"m stakes of fact." Ms. Leibowitz said the Ofice of the
Onbudsman hears from the Ofice of Children's Services (OCS),
which involves children in state custody; parents, relatives,
and famly friends; people dealing with child support cases,
because that agency deals with a lot of noney and with children;
the Department of Corrections, where the custoner is usually in
jail and unhappy; and every executive branch agency at sone
poi nt or another. She stated that the Ofice of the Onbudsman
can make recomendations, investigate, obtain records, and
report, but cannot force change on anyone; it does not have
enf orcement power.

8:10: 30 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ said it has been about 20 years since the Ofice
of the QOrbudsman has had any nmjor anendnents to its "enabling
legislation.” She related that at the request of the Orbudsman,
she worked wth Legislative Legal and Research Services to
produce draft legislation to address the accunul ated probl ens.

M5. LEIBONTZ ventured that the nost inportant provision in the
proposed legislation is that which would anend the testinonial
privilege of the Ofice of the Orbudsnan. She expl ai ned t hat
currently the Ofice of the Orbudsnman may not testify in court
except to enforce the provisions of its |egislation. She said
that is a "perfectly good privilege statute,” which has existed
since 1975; however, it does not address production of docunents

or admnistrative hearings. The O fice of the Orbudsman woul d
like to anmend the statute to express on mtters of quasi-
judicial forum In response to Chair Lynn, M. Leibowitz

expl ai ned her plan had been to cover HB 127 by topic.
8:12:16 AM

CHAIR LYNN requested M. Leibowitz talk about the bill by
section, instead.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2013



8:12: 37 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ directed attention to Section 1, which deals with
the Al aska Bar Association (ABA). She said the Ofice of the
Onbudsman would Iike a yes or no answer as to whether ABA is an
agency over which it should have jurisdiction. She said in
| egal analysis, sone of the factors used by the Alaska Suprene
Court appear to make the ABA |ook |ike an agency over which the
Ofice of the Onbudsman would have jurisdiction, while other
factors do not. Since the early 1980s, the Ofice of the
Orbudsman has maintained that the ABA should be in its
jurisdiction, while the ABA has held the opposite view

CHAI R LYNN asked if both sides are |l ooking for clarity.

M5. LEIBOW TZ said she thinks the ABA would "sinply like to have
it be no and absolutely not." She clarified, "W do not have a
position about which way it goes, other than that we want it
settled.”

8:14: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON questioned what the value of having the
ABA under the jurisdiction of the Ofice of the Orbudsnman woul d
be, since "the aspect of jurisdiction usually requires that you
have the ability to enforce."

8:14: 43 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ offered her understanding that it would be the
sanme value as for other |icensing agencies. She said currently
the Ofice of the Orbudsman has jurisdiction over the Al aska
State Medical Board and all boards that are handled through
professional |icensing. The primary effect of that jurisdiction
is that the Ofice of the Orbudsman can obtain records and talk
to staff to find out if there is a problemin how a conplaint or
licensing is being handl ed. She said Representative |saacson is
correct that statute gives the Ofice of the Orbudsman no
enforcenment power; it gives the office access.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he has directed people to the
Ofice of the Orbudsman, and he expressed appreciation for M.
Lei bowitz' review of what the office does. He drew attention to
a letter from the ABA, [dated March 7, 2013, included in the
commttee packet], which talks about the ABA' s strict oversight
of its disciplinary responsibilities, as well as nentioning the
issue of confidentiality. He asked Ms. Leibowitz to describe

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2013



the difference between the ABA and OCS, in terns of how the
O fice of the Orbudsman handl es conpl ai nts.

M5. LEIBOWTZ said she thinks the closest analogy would be the
Al aska State Medical Board. She said occasionally the Ofice of
the Orbudsman receives conplaints about the process for
licensing discipline and it |ooks at what the investigator
pul l ed, whether the licensing was a tinely process, and whether
access to speak to the board was granted if desired. |f someone
filed a conplaint about a doctor, the Ofice of the Onbudsman
woul d consider whether the board reviewed the nedical files,
whether it did what it should do when reviewi ng such a case, and
whet her the conplaint was handled in a tinmely manner. She said
the ABA is different, because even with jurisdiction over the
ABA's adm nistrative agency, it is Ilikely that disciplinary

i ssues still would not be within the reach of the Ofice of the
Onbudsman, because it cannot view judicial decisions; it is not
an appeals court. She said disciplinary decisions, such as

suspending or disbarring an attorney, are reviewed and decided
by justices of the Al aska Suprene Court. She said that part is
a little bit like OCS, because there are decisions in OCS cases
that are decided by judges. The Ofice of Orbudsman nust groom
through those cases and determne which decisions are
adm ni strative and which are cases that have been ruled on by a
j udge, thereby making themoff limts.

8:18: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON offered his understanding that M.
Leibowtz is saying that it would be no different to have the
ABA under the jurisdiction of the Ofice of the Onrbudsman than
any other agency, because the primary focus of the office is to
ensure that a person's conplaint is heard.

M5. LEIBOWTZ said she thinks that is the case; however, she
said she thinks if the legislature wants the Ofice of the
Onbudsman to deal with ABA matters, an additional section of
statute woul d be necessary to address Bar Rules 21 and 22.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked Ms. Lei bowi t z i f she is

recommendi ng that the proposed legislation be held until that
specific language can be brought to the committee. He said he
does not want to pass a bill out of committee that is not well

t hought out or conplete.

M5. LEIBONTZ said that depends on how the commttee would
answer the basic jurisdictional question. She explained that if

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2013



the answer is no, then there is no need to hold the bill;
Section 1 could be anended. She stated, "I cannot offer you an
ultimate opinion about whether it's a great thing for us to have
jurisdiction, because, as | said, our office just needs to know,
as a policy call: Does the legislature want us to do this or
not ?"

8:21: 08 AM

CHAI R LYNN expressed his intent is not to nove the bill today to
give time to address controversial topics within it. He said,
"I can see where ... if we don't get it straightened out on this
Section 1, we would need further information on it."

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON echoed the chair's renark.
8:22: 03 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ proffered that the aforenentioned bar rules
provide for the confidentiality of conplaint and disciplinary
proceeding within the bar. She said a subsection would need to
be added to indicate that the Ofice of the Orbudsman is one of
the entities that are allowed to access those records.

8:22:34 AM

LI NDA LORD JENKINS, Onbudsman, Ofice of the Orbudsnman, Al aska
State Legislature, confirnmed Ms. Leibowtz' testinony that the
Ofice of the Onbudsman is looking for |egislative guidance.
She said she thinks the docunents and backup docunents produced
are fairly evenhanded, and the office just wants the question
settl ed. She said she thinks it would be appropriate, if
necessary, to anmend the proposed bill to address the questions
rai sed about anendi ng the bar rules.

8:.23:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER concurred with the remarks of Chair Lynn
and Representative |saacson, regarding the commttee's need to
see the |anguage of the bar rules in order to nmake an inforned
deci si on.

M5. LEIBOWTZ said she would be happy to provide that | anguage
via Legislative Legal and Research Services.

8:24: 07 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2013



STEVE VAN GOOR, Bar Council, Al aska Bar Association, stated that
in 1965, the legislature decided this issue when it created the
bar as an instrunentality of the state, not as an agency under
either the executive, legislative, or judicial branches. He
said there are two levels of review for any conplaint. A person
dissatisfied with the decision by the Bar Council can go to a

board liaison and have the decision reviewed. The liaison has
the conplete authority to direct the council to conduct further
i nvesti gations. Even after the |iaison nakes a decision on a

conplaint, the conplainant can take that decision up to the
Al aska Supreme Court. M. Van Goor said the ABA is regularly
reviewed by the Division of Legislative Budget and Audit. He
said that as pointed out by Ms. Leibowitz, by court rule the ABA
could not afford access to the Ofice of the Orbudsman, unless
the attorney waived confidentiality, unless an exception applied
in Bar Rule 21, or the [Alaska] Supreme Court ordered
di scl osure. He said there would have to be litigation, because
the bar is essentially "in the mddle." He expl ained that the
bar is ordered by court rule to enforce confidentiality of the
process up to the point of formal charges or public discipline,
and it does not have the authority to wuniformy waive
confidentiality.

MR. VAN GOOR said there is a coment in the report given to the
conmttee that states there have been six matters since Decenber
of 1999, where there was a jurisdictional dispute regarding
whet her or not the Ofice of the Onbudsman could investigate the
ABA. He pointed out that since January of 2000, the ABA has
processed nearly 3,079 conplaints. O those, the six matters
referenced in the report are two-tenths of one percent of the
matters reviewed by the ABA M. Van Goor stated that the ABA
is mndful of its responsibilities to Alaska citizens. He said
it cooperates thoroughly with the legislature in periodic audits
conducted by Legislative Audit, with the executive branch in the
governor's appoi ntnment of the three public nenbers of its board
of governors, and wth the Alaska Supreme Court, as it
supervi ses the adm ssion and disciplinary process. M. Van Goor
opi ned that Section 1 of HB 127 is not necessary.

8:27:06 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked M. Van Goor if he thinks there is clarity as
to "who can do what" without the proposed |egislation.

MR. VAN GOOR said in order to nmake a jurisdictional decision,

the first decision to be made would have to be whether or not
the ABA is an agency, and since 1965, the ABA has not been

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2013



classified as an agency, but rather as an instrunentality of the
state, much the sane as the University of Alaska is an
instrunmentality of the state. He said, "Qite frankly, we
believe the |egislature has decided this issue already ...."

8:28:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said M. Van  Goor had nentioned
litigation, and he questioned whet her making appropriate changes
in Bar Rules 21 and 22 would take away the threat of a | aw suit.

MR. VAN GOOR responded that Representative Keller is right: The
ABA is bound to follow the rules of procedure adopted by the
Al aska Suprene Court regarding confidentiality of the grievance
process. |If those rules are changed, of course the ABA would be
obligated to follow the dictates of those rule changes.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if, in his previous remarks, M. Van
Goor was saying he thinks the University of Alaska and the ABA
are above the basic fact checking conducted by the Ofice of the
Onbudsman. He asked, "Instrunentality of the state ... is not
above the law, right?"

MR. VAN GOOR answered that Representative Keller is correct. He
clarified the point he was trying to make in his concluding
remarks is that ABA is responsible to all three branches of

gover nment . He posited that the input of the three public
menbers on the ABA Board of Governors has been extrenely
affective in terns of disciplinary and adm ssion matters. He

said the Alaska Suprene Court has the ultimate responsibility
not only in deciding who is and is not admtted to practice |aw,
but also who remains in practice. He enphasized, "So, by no
means, in calling the Al aska Bar Association an instrunentality,
am | saying that we're above the law and not subject to the
three branches of governnent." He said the intent of
classifying the ABA as an instrumentality in 1955 was to
underline that the ABA is an inportant function of state
government, which though not directly under the three branches
of government, is directly accountable to all three branches.

8:32: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said the Ofice of the Orbudsman answers
to the legislative branch. He stated his belief that the intent
behind the creation of the Ofice of the Orbudsman was to have
an entity that stands between potential excesses by agencies or
instrunentalities and the people of Al aska, because "there is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 12, 2013



nothing else there." He said it is inportant for the conmmttee
to determne whether there may be excesses by the ABA that
should be brought to |I|ight. He then asked M. Van Goor to
clarify hi s previ ous statistical i nformation regar di ng
conpl ai nt s.

MR. VAN GOOR directed attention to a paragraph in the mddle of
page 7 of a handout in the <conmttee packet entitled

"Introduction to Proposed Anmendnents to the Orbudsman Act (HB
127)," which read as foll ows:

Qut of the seven conplaints declined due to lack of
clarity over our jurisdiction, six conplaints alleged
that the Bar Association had failed to adequately
investigate a conplaint about attorney conpetence -
t hese were generally conplaints by crimnal defendants
regarding their court-appointed counsel. The seventh
conplaint involved a client's effort to collect on a
fee arbitration award ordered by the Bar Associ ation.

MR. VAN GOOR expl ained he was not saying that only two-tenths of
one percent of 3,000 conplaints resulted in discipline, but was
saying that the six conplaints the Ofice of the Orbudsnan
| ooked at and determ ned were a jurisdictional issue has to be
conpared to the 3,079 conplaints that "we" |ooked at. He said
if there was an issue about the ABA not doing a proper job wth

conplaints, it wuld be reflected in a couple places: First,
there would be a finding by the onbudsman in those six
conplaints that there was a problem but there was not. Second,

there would have been a finding by the Legislative Audit
Division that the ABA had failed in its disciplinary and
i nvestigative function, but there has been no such finding in
any of the audit reports that have been submtted to the
| egislature since the early 1980s. M. Van Goor said the ABA's
annual report shows that the association is in a serious
di sci plinary business and reports annually the nunber of |awers

that have been disciplined, suspended, or disbarred. Unl i ke
other investigatory and licensing agencies, he said, the ABA
publishes notice of di sci pline, including the type of

discipline, in the four nmmjor newspapers in the state. He said
he does not think there is any other entity that does that, and
it is done at significant expense to the association. He said
those records are public, and the ABA is currently working to
get themon |ine.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 12, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked M. Van Goor if it could be the case
regarding the six conplaints that there were no findings because
there was no access to the records at the tine.

MR. VAN GOOR answered Representative Keller is correct; however,
he said the nunber of conplaints that cone to the Ofice of the
Onbudsman pale in conparison with the nunber of conplaints the
ABA processes. He surm sed that those who are incarcerated
"probably conplain about their |awers as they conplain about
ot her state agencies, including the Departnment of Corrections.”
He said the ABA has a specific way of investigating and
responding to concerns expressed by inmates who conplain that
their representation is ineffective; the Alaska Court System has
a method by which it investigates ineffective assistance of
counsel; and if an inmate disagrees with the ABA s decision not
to investigate or dismss, that decision can be reviewed by the
board liaison and further go to the Alaska Suprene Court. He
said he woul d conpare the supervision and responsibility the ABA
has for the proper handling of these conplaints to any I|icensing
agency in the state. He said the ABA is strictly regulated and
takes its job seriously.

8:38: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked M. Van Goor to define agency and
instrunmentality, and to explain why he thinks it is appropriate
for the Alaska State Medical Board to be an agency, but not for
the ABA to be an agency.

MR. VAN GOOR pointed out that [the Al aska State Medical Board]
was created in statute as an agency while the ABA was created
"by an instrunentality.” He enphasized that the Division of
Prof essional Licensing conmes to the legislature on an annual
basis to receive legislative funds in order to do its job. The
ABA is not funded by public noney. He said there was a tine the
ABA sought reinbursenent for the expenses incurred by public
menbers on the Board of Governors, but that occurred 20-30 years

ago. M. Van Goor said he understands M. Leibowitz' argunent
that under the Sullivan case that "you ought to |ook at the
factors that determi ne whether or not an agency exists.” He
said other occupational Ilicensing entities were created as

agencies, and he reiterated that the ABA was not.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked for further explanation regarding
the difference between an agency and an instrunentality.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2013



MR. VAN GOOR answered that agencies nust adhere to requirenents
under the Admnistrative Procedures Act, the Procurement Act,
and other state requirenents. The ABA has been specifically
excluded from the Admnistrative Procedures Act, he said,
primarily because its rule-making function is to suggest rules
to be adopted by the Alaska Suprene Court. The ABA is
responsi bl e for open records and open neetings, but differs from
other state agencies in that it needs the independence to
investigate conplaints and make rational, thoughtful decisions
by its disciplinary board that it submts to the Al aska Suprene

Court. He said it is possible that function could be adversely
impacted if there were outside pressures brought to bear on the
association in mking its decision. He said the ABA is

represented statewi de by nenbers elected from the nenbership in
the various judicial districts. He reiterated that the ABA has
the inportant contribution of governor-appointed public nenbers
on the board. He concluded, "So, | think when you |ook at the
requirenents that are inposed at other agencies and the
oversight inposed on those other agencies, the [Alaska] Bar
Association isn't an agency for the purpose of this

| egi sl ation.”

8:44: 05 AM

CHAIR LYNN remarked that any legislature can change what
previ ous | egi sl atures have done.

8:44: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked why it is inmportant for the ABA to
remain an independent entity and not for the State Board of
Medi cine to do so.

MR. VAN GOOR answered that the practice of lawis different from
ot her occupations |licensed by the state, primarily because
| awyers are adm nistered the bar [exam, take the oath of office
to the ABA as officers of the court, and are responsible for the
faithful performance of their duties as |awers representing
clients, as governnent |awers representing agencies, and as
| awyers appearing ultinmately to the Al aska Suprenme Court. He
said the practice of law is inportant in maintaining the
i ndependence of citizens, so that decisions are nerit-based. He
said it is inportant to have an independent, functioning
practice of law in any state and that the Al aska Suprene Court
has the ability to properly supervise and regul ate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2013



MR. VAN GOOR clarified that he is not by any neans saying that
the ABA is not subject to the three branches of governnent. He
reiterated his remarks regarding the communication system
between the ABA and the three branches. He ventured that the
role the Ofice of the Orbudsman would Ilike is to nmake
suggestions regarding the conduct of a conplaint; however, he
suggested that that function is already done on a regular basis
by the disciplinary board in reviewng the operations of the ABA
office and by the suprene court in reviewng how well the ABA is
conplying with the rules set up for investigations.

8:47:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER remarked that the Ofice of the Orbudsman
has been very clear that it wants clarity, not expansion.

MR. VAN GOOR responded that it did seem that the Ofice of the
Onbudsman was "a bit anbi val ent about whether this was necessary
or not." He opined that it is not a necessary change. He
stated, "Cearly, if the onbudsman wants a yes or no answer,
respectfully, the position of the bar is that the answer should
be no."

8:49: 03 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ stated that the strongest argunment against
onbudsman jurisdiction is the l|level of [Alaska] Supreme Court
review that is involved with the ABA's decisions, and that is
because the Ofice of the Onbudsman does not review judicial
decisions. She said that issue is discussed in the appendi x of
the sectional analysis included in the commttee packet. In
response to the chair, she said the strongest argunent for
[ onbudsman jurisdiction] is that "at the end of the day, they
still look like a licensing entity." She expl ained that even
though the ABA is an instrunentality rather than an agency, it
appears to be carrying out the functions of a state regulatory
body.

8:50: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he thinks there are a nunber of
i ssues between "what the [Al aska] Supreme Court may or may not
decide and the issues that nay arise," judging by the work done
by the Ofice of the Onrbudsman, which is inportant to the
peopl e.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 12, 2013



M5. LEIBONTZ responded, "If we didn't think there were sone
[issues], we mght not think it necessary to raise this
qguestion; though frankly, given the long history of anbiguity on
this point, |1 think it's about time to give it a yes or no,
regardl ess. " She said she thinks the ABA has nore intense
judicial involvenment; the Alaska Suprene Court's |level of
i nvol venent in ABA decisions is higher than for any other type
of licensing body in the state. M. Leibowitz said, "That would
be argunent for saying, 'Let the judiciary handle them'" She
added, "But | don't think that covers absolutely everything they
do."

8:52:43 AM
REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked where the Ofice of the Orbudsnman
cones into play if sonmeone has a conplaint against a doctor

versus an attorney.

MS. LEIBONTZ answered that the O fice of the Orbudsnan does not
attenpt to nmake a substantive call regarding a doctor's standard

of care; it gets involved with matters of due process. For
exanple, the office may consider whether the |icensee was
"heard" when "comng up for discipline and about to |ose
hi s/ her license or consider whether the board and its staff of

investigators responded in a tinely manner and as candidly as
the [ aw al | ows.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked Ms. Leibowtz to further her
explanation by describing how the Ofice of the Orbudsnman's
i nvol venent would differ between legal and nedical for "this
type of conplaint.”

M5. LEIBONTZ offered her wunderstanding that if the ABA
determnes no disciplinary action is necessary after considering
a conplaint against an attorney, the conplainant has the option
of filing a petition asking the Al aska Suprene Court to review

t hat case. She said, "In other words, it can go directly to a
judicial decision; not just a deferential one, but one |ooking
right into the Bar Association decision.” She relayed that a

conplainant in a nedical case could file an Al aska Superior
Court appeal of the decision to decline the conplaint; however,
she offered her understanding that the court's review would be
"a good deal nore deferential toward the adm nistrative agency."
She added, "It's usually |less court involvenent."

8:56: 06 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 12, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he can appreciate M. Van Goor's
testinmony "to a certain level,” but concurred with Ms. Leibowitz
that there is a question about the |icensing aspect that makes
all the entities appear to be on equal footing and therefore
under the jurisdiction of [the Ofice of the Orbudsman]. He
said he guesses that is why further clarification is needed
regardi ng Bar Rules 21 and 22.

8:56: 50 AM
CHAIR LYNN stated that this nmay be one of the nore controversi al
parts of the bill, so he does not mnd spending nore tine on it.
8:57.:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS asked if there are other states in
which the state bar association falls under the purview of the
onbudsman's offi ce.

M5. LEIBONTZ answered there don't seem to be other states,
partly because nobst of the state onbudsman's offices take the
entire judicial branch out of their jurisdiction. She said
Al aska is unusual in that the Ofice of the Onbudsman has been
given jurisdiction over adm nistrative agencies, even within the
judicial branch. For exanple, it has |ooked at conplaints about
the Cerk of Courts Ofice. She said she thinks at |east one of
the states that has a general jurisdiction onbudsnman has a
vol untary bar association, which she said | ooks even less like a
state regul atory agency.

8:58: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked Ms. Leibowitz how the Ofice of the
Onbudsman responds to conplaints regarding the |egislative
br anch.

IVB. LEIBONTZ answered that the office does not have
jurisdiction over elected officials. In theory, the office has
jurisdiction over | egislative branch agencies, such as
Legislative Affairs; however, in practice the office does not
"see much of that" and is not "terribly enthusiastic about
investigating a sister agency." She deferred to M. Lord-
Jenkins for further commrent.

8:59: 33 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 12, 2013



M5. LORD-JENKINS said the Ofice of the Orbudsman has, on
occasion, received conplaints about legislative aides, which it
forwards to the enployer of the aide. The office has received
conplaints about |egislative agencies and has nmade inquiries
about the conplaints as appropriate; however, she offered her
understanding that in the time she has been wth the Ofice of
t he Orbudsman, since 1989, the office has not issued a fornal
report or even gone beyond a few inquiry calls.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said that really illustrates the value of
the Ofice of the Orbudsman.

9: 00: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked how having oversight of the ABA
woul d i npact the workload of the Ofice of the Orbudsman.

9:01:12 AM

MS5. LEIBOWNTZ surm sed that the nunber of ABA cases seen by the
O fice of the Orbudsnman woul d increase, but not by nuch, in part
because the ABA would be "running" its process, and sonme of its
deci sions would be reviewed by the suprene court rather than by
the Ofice of the Orbudsnman. In response to a followup
guestion, she estimated that over the |ast decade, the Ofice of
t he Onbudsman has seen no nore than an average of one or two ABA

cases a year. She said there have been cases the office was
unable to go forward with, and thus was unable to resolve one
way or the other. She said if the legislature appointed the

Ofice of the Onbudsman as overseer of ABA cases, she does not
know the ultimate inpact, because that would be a new area of
focus. Notw thstanding that, she estimated the office initially
woul d see approximately five or six cases a year, at nost, and
she said she does not know how nuch that case |oad would
i ncrease after that.

9:03: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS ventured that the argunment against
placing the ABA within the jurisdiction of the Ofice of the
Onbudsman would be that it would be redundant; the judicial
branch already supervises the ABA He asked in what cases
conpl aints against the ABA would not be adequately reviewed by
the court system

M5. LEIBOWTZ answered, "I think it's some of the sane problens
that ... we see with other state agencies, where it's tineliness

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 12, 2013



of response; it's how clear the response was. ... Those tend to
be the big ones we see with all state agencies of conplaints
that aren't really susceptible to judicial review It's, 'How
is this being handled while it's getting to the end point?' "

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked M. Leibowtz to explain
what she neans by "tineliness of response.” He asked if she
nmeans that the Supreme Court has a lengthy review process for
conpl ai nts agai nst the ABA

M5. LEIBON TZ responded as foll ows:

Actually, the first part of that is that before it
ever would go to the court, the Bar Association is
reviewing it, and | think nbost agencies at sonme point,
whether it's justified or not, we get a conplaint
saying, "I ... asked the agency for such and such and
it fell into a black hole.” You know, ... sonetines
those are really not justified and sonetines they are;
it's basically a responsiveness issue. The other part
of that, ... especially for a conplaint that the Bar
Associ ation turns down: the [Al aska] Suprene Court is
only going to review that if the conplainant then
files a request for the court to reviewit.

9:05:41 AM

M5. LEIBOWNTZ, in response to Representative Hughes, enphasized
that the Ofice of the QOrbudsman is not a replacenent for the
ABA' s process. She explained that if a person calls the Ofice
of the Orbudsman with a conplaint about an attorney, the office
first would advise himher to get a conplaint packet from the
ABA, and from there the Ofice of the Onbudsman can determ ne
whet her the ABA is managing its process well.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES explained she is trying to determ ne how
the decision the comrittee nakes regarding HB 127 wll affect
t he public.

M5. LEIBOWTZ said she does not think it is possible to know the
answer to that concern yet, because the Ofice of the QOrbudsman
has never actually conpleted an investigation of the ABA
process. She said to sonme extent it wll not be a conplete
resolution, because in a disciplinary decision against an
attorney, "the justice's jurisdiction over that would tend to
indicate that we would not be there.” She concluded, "So, to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 12, 2013



some extent we're not going to be able to address sonme of the
i ssues that we mght address with other state agencies."

9:08:21 AM

CHAIR LYNN requested that M. Leibowitz continue wth the
sectional analysis, for the time being skipping Sections 12 and
13, which he described as needing nore tinme for discussion.

9:09:11 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ directed attention to Section 2. She said
currently the onbudsnman's salary is set at a Step A Range 26,
and under Section 2 of HB 127, the Step A would be renoved, thus
allowing the onbudsman to occasionally receive a step increase
wi thin a Range 26.

CHAI R LYNN asked how rmuch of an increase that woul d provide.

M5. LEIBONTZ answered, "In a year where the onbudsman received
a step increase, budget permtting, it would be about $3,000-
$4,000 as a salary increase." In response to a followup
guestion, she said she would find out how rmuch the onbudsnan
currently nmakes and let the commttee know |ater. She rel ated
that in 2012, the Ilegislature revised conpensation for the
salary of the Victinms' Rights Advocate from a Step A Range 26,
to allow that position to receive step increases.

M5. LEIBOWTZ said the legislature has a provision that allows
the hiring of individuals under a personal services contract,
which is done primarily to allow legislative offices to hire
retirees to work on contract. The provision states that it is
applicable to the wentire |legislative branch; however, the
onbudsman's statute, which predates the personal servi ces
contract provision, states that enploynment policies under [AS]
24.10 do not apply to the Ofice of the OQOrbudsman. Ms.
Leibowitz explained that Section 3 would clarify that the
personal services contract provision applies to the onbudsman.

9:12: 13 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ relayed that under current statute, the opinions
and recomrendations provided to an agency by the Ofice of the
Orbudsman are confidential; however, correspondence between the
Ofice of the Orbudsman and the state agency personnel prior to
maki ng those opinions and recommendations is not guaranteed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 12, 2013



confidentiality. Ms. Leibowitz said Section 4 would ensure the
confidentiality of that correspondence.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked Ms. Leibowitz to confirm that the
Ofice of the Onbudsman is not requesting to conceal
information, but rather to have transparency after the opinion
or recommendation i s nade.

M5. LEIBONTZ responded, "Currently the only part of the
onbudsman's report that is releasable is when the onbudsman
publ i shes after investigation, and the onbudsman can choose to
make the investigation report public. ... These communi cati ons
would remain nonpublic even afterwards,” for exanple, if the
onbudsman discovered a conplaint had no nerit and did not
publish on it.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON sai d that disturbs him "because we want
to be able to know that all issues that are settled are settled
properly."” He nentioned the Freedom of Information Act (FOA),
and asked if there is a current problem where people are asking
for the e-mails to be made public before the Ofice of the
Orbudsman is able to release a report or if [requesting Section
4] is a preventative neasure.

M5. LEIBOWNTZ responded there was one case |ast year when an
i ndi vidual asked the Ofice of the Orbudsman for a copy of a
letter to an agency and the office refused; however, she said it
is not clear whether the agency wuld have to give the
information to the person if asked to do so. Ms. Leibowitz
commented on the irony of information being kept confidential by
the Ofice of the Onbudsman while perhaps being shared by the
agency invol ved.

9:15:45 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ said Section 5 also addresses the issue of
confidentiality. She explained that under current statute, the
Ofice of the Onbudsman does not have access to attorney/client
privilege material or attorney work product, and it is not
contesting that fact. However, executive branch personnel
sonetimes provides the onbudsnan with opinions given by the
Ofice of the Attorney General, and Section 5 would offer an
anti -wai ver provi si on to "protect their attorney/client
privilege from ... being considered waived if they offered the
information to our office to explain what they're doing."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 12, 2013



M5. LEIBONTZ stated that Sections 6-9 would provide a statutory
mechanism for the Ofice of the Onbudsman to issue an infornmal
report. She explained that wunder original statute, the
onbudsman personally "shall report,” and she said that report
made by the onbudsman is formalized and cunbersone; the office
i ssues approximately one dozen of them a year. Last year, she
relayed, the Ofice of the Orbudsman received 1,000 conplaints,
many of which were unsupported or declined as "premature," but
about 200-300 of which received a substantial anmount of
i nvestigative work. She said sone of those conplaints were
di scontinued, while sone resulted in the office suggesting to
the agency involved that there was sonmething that needed to be
fixed; it did not go to a formal report. She stated, "W would
like it to be clear in statute that we have a mechani sm for .
investigating and resolving a conplaint short of that fornal
report at the end.”

9:18:48 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ said Section 10 relates to testinonial privilege.
She expl ained that the Ofice of the Orbudsman currently has the
privilege to not testify in court except as necessary to
"enforce the provision of this chapter."” She said that dates
from the establishment of the Ofice of the Orbudsman in 1975
and is designed to keep the onbudsman out of collateral
litigation. She said, "W would like that testinonial privilege
made nore express to nmke it <clear that it applies to
admnistrative hearings as well as to court [proceedings], and
to make it very clear that we do not produce records any nore
than we go and testify verbally."

9:19: 42 AM
REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked if this has been a problem

M5. LEIBOWNTZ answered not to date. She explained that the
Ofice of Victine' R ghts statute, which was nodeled, in part,
on the Onbudsman Act, has a lot of identical |anguage, except
that the testinonial privilege section enacted for the Ofice of
Victinmse' Rights in 2001 is nore express and nuch clearer. She
opined that it is tinme to upgrade the |anguage for the Ofice of
t he Orbudsman.

9: 20: 20 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ said AS 24.55.275 is the procurenment statute, and
it has a couple problens: first, it refers only to contracts

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 12, 2013



for services, and second, it basically states that the office
shall have regulations consistent with AS 36.30, which refers
procurenent for |egislative branch agencies back to Legislative
Counsel and the procurenment policies made by the |egislature.
She said, "W'd like that amended to make it clear that our
procurenent applies to all types of procurenent, not sinply
contracts to services, and we would like it tied to the
| egi sl ative procurenent policies."

9:21: 37 AM

CHAIR LYNN reminded the commttee of his intent to bypass
Sections 12 and 13, and he asked commttee nenbers to review
t hose sections carefully before the next bill hearing.

9:21:51 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ explained that Sections 5 and 10 are indirect
amendnents of the court rules; Sections 14 and 16 state that the
changes to the court rules would not be effective wthout a two-
thirds majority [vote of each house of the |egislature].

MS. LEIBOWTZ noted that Section 15 relates to Section 12 and
13.

CHAIR LYNN asked the commttee to also consider Section 13
before the next bill hearing.

9:23:12 AM

GECRCE MEYER stated that he finds it interesting that the
previous testifier for the ABA "classifies hinself as an

instrunment of the state.” He questioned if that means school
teachers, union halls, and preachers fall into the sane
cat egory.

CHAI R LYNN asked if anyone had a response to that query.
9:24.: 00 AM

M5. LEIBONTZ proffered that a union is a private entity, and
she said the Ofice of the Orbudsman does not deal w th churches
or have jurisdiction over school districts, unless the school
district has signed up to work with the Ofice of the Orbudsman.
In response to M. Meyer, she said, "If | had a clear answer for
what 'instrunmentality of the state' neant, then | think that we
m ght not be here today."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 12, 2013



9:24:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he | ooked up "instrumentality” in the
dictionary and found that one of the synonyns for the word is
"agency." He indicated that the commttee is considering the
termas it relates to the bill.

9:25:23 AM

VR. MEYER enphasized the inportance of the |legislature
conducting the state's business with integrity and doing things
in "the proper way."

9: 25: 58 AM

MS. LEIBOWNTZ thanked the commttee for the opportunity to speak
on HB 127.

9:26:12 AM

CHAI R LYNN [ announced that HB 127 was hel d over].
9:26:41 AM

The conmittee took a brief at-ease at 9:26 a.m

HIR 8-AMEND U.S. CONST. RE CAMPAI GN MONEY

9:29: 08 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced that the final order of business was
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 8, Urging the
United States Congress and the President of the United States to
work to amend the Constitution of the United States to prohibit
corporations, unions, and other organizations from nmaking
unlimted independent expenditures supporting or opposing
candi dates for public office.

9:29:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for SSHIR 8, Version 28-LS0424/C, Bullard,
3/11/13, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version C
was before the commttee.

9: 30: 05 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 12, 2013



CHAIR LYNN revi ewed the changes incorporated in Version C. The
first change was to replace the word "large" with "unlimted"
when preceding the word "contributions”. The next change was to
del ete | anguage from the sponsor substitute, on page 2, lines 1-
5. The last change was to add two "whereas" clauses, which are
found on page 2, |lines 1-6.

9:31: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA, Alaska State Legislature, as sponsor,
presented HIR 8. He explained that the proposed legislation is
a response to Citizens United, a [U S.] Suprene Court decision a
coupl e years ago, whi ch al | oned envi ronnent al gr oups,
corporations, unions, and "all sorts of special interest groups"”
to make unlimted [canpaign] contributions. He said the groups
have to |list whether the noney they contribute is in support of
or in opposition to a candidate, and 80 percent of the

contributions are listed as being nade in opposition to a
candi dat e. Representative Gara said the statenments made in
opposition to candi dates are negative and often untrue. He said
these large groups, including foreign groups, are influencing
el ections. He related that in 2008, before Ctizens United,
i ndependent expenditures on the national Ievel totaled $150
mllion; for the nobst recent Presidential Election in 2012,
i ndependent expenditures totaled over one billion dollars - a

seven-fold increase. He said the airways have been flooded with
negati ve adverti senents.

CHAIR LYNN remarked that what is negative for one candi date can
be positive for another.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA indicated that he would not |ike certain
negative statenents mnade about his opponent, even if those
statenents benefitted his own canpai gn

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said the question is: Do we want noney to
flood out the best ideas? He said [false] negative advertising
aired or printed just days before an election gives no tine for
the candidate being attacked to respond, and "all of a sudden
the election gets dictated and the issues get dictated by
outside groups, not by the candidates who are running against
each ot her.

9:34:11 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 12, 2013



CHAIR LYNN said the House Judiciary Standing Commttee in a
previous |egislative session debated at length the requirenents
for disclosure, and he offered his understanding that there is a
requirenent for the top three contributors to be announced not
only in witing at the bottom of the television screen, but also
audi bly announced so that soneone listening to the television
but not watching it can hear who the contributor is.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA indicated that Al aska and sone other states
adopted that requirenent, and the subject has been debated by
Congr ess. He said "they" have found a |oophole regarding that

requirenent; therefore, it is not working well. In response to
Chair Lynn, he explained that top donors are filtering their
money through 1ocal groups. He said that is sonething that

could be fixed in law, but stated that that is not really the
focus of the proposed joint resolution.

9: 36: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, in response to Representative Keller,
indicated that the previous statenent he nade regarding the
per cent age of noney focused on negative advertising can be found
anong the information he provided in the commttee packet; it
has been docunent ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that the goal of CSSS HIR 8 is to
obtain a federal Constitutional anmendment when three-quarters of
the states ratify the Constitutional anmendnent put out by
Congress. He said roughly 11 states thus far have told Congress
they want a Constitutional amendnent, while 20 other states are
considering resolutions |like CSSS HIR 8. He said he anticipates
nore states will follow suit.

9:37:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA responded to a request from the chair to
sumari ze the purpose of each "whereas" clause in the proposed
joint resolution. He said the first whereas clause tal ks about
the ability of groups to put unlimted amounts of noney into
canpai gn expenditures; the second whereas clause says Citizens
United was highly contested, but is the law of the land, and
i ndependent expenditures cannot be stopped as long as Ctizens
United exists; and the third whereas clause states that
unlimted expenditures skew the political system in favor of
t hose who have noney. He opined that states should have the
right to |imt independent expenditures, and he suggested

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 12, 2013



perhaps there should be limts, such as there are for politica
action commttees (PAGCs).

CHAIR LYNN offered his understanding that for canmpaigns run in
Al aska, individual canpaign contributions were limted to $1,000
and are now limted to $500, while PACs were linmted to $2,000
and are now linmted to $1, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA ventured a person could predict what sonmeone
who gives $25 to a canpaign would say when asked whether that
$25 gives himher the same voice in politics as a group that
donates a mllion dollars.

9:39: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that the fourth whereas clause was
added by the comm ttee.

9:39: 30 AM

CHAI R LYNN addressed the fourth whereas clause, on page 2, lines
1-3, which read as foll ows:

WHEREAS the boards of directors and mnmanagenent of
cor porations, uni ons, and ot her or gani zati ons
permtted to nake unlinmted independent expenditures
may include individuals who are not citizens of the
United States; and

CHAIR LYNN offered his understanding that the decision to put
forth canpai gn expenditures rests with the board of directors of
a corporation, and nenbers of nmany boards are not U S. citizens.
He opined that only US. citizens should be able to contribute
for or against a candidate or proposition, which is why he
proposed this whereas clause. He offered his understanding that
| egi sl ati ve candi dates cannot accept canpaign contributions from
i ndi vidual s who are not citizens of the U S

REPRESENTATI VE GARA confirnmed that is correct. He said a Sw ss
corporation, Astra Zeneca Pharmaceuticals, donated noney for an
el ection in the U S He remarked, "You can inmagine as we have
the pipeline debate that maybe a Chi nese conpany or a Japanese
conpany or sone other conpany would get involved, and at sone
point it's neddling in Alaska politics ... by foreign entities.”

9:41: 21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 12, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE GARA directed attention to the fifth whereas
cl ause, which states that few candidates are able to stand up to
big noney, and canpaigns are defined by the big donations and
not by what the candi dates have to say. In response to Chair
Lynn, he said in close races, if an entity spends mllions of
dollars against a candidate in the final days of a politica
race, that candidate will probably | ose.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said the seventh whereas clause, on page 2,
lines 7-9, says the only way to [reverse the Citizens United
decision] is through a constitutional anendnent. He said he is
not a fan of resolutions; however, he said he thinks that if 36
other states back this resolution and send the nessage to

Congress that "enough is enough,” there will be support for this
change in Congress. He noted that U S. Senator Lisa Mirkowski
has spoken against "the evils of this kind of noney." He said

people want to run their own canpaigns and don't mnd running
agai nst ot her candi dates who run their own canpaign, but he said
he thinks "we all mnd when outside groups get involved,
especially with this concept of wunlimted expenditures ....
He said the "Be It Resolved" |anguage urges the U S. Congress
and the President of the United States to work across party
lines to put a constitutional anendnment on the ballot.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA rel ayed that 95 percent of candidates who
receive the nost noney get el ected. He said, "This issue has
sort of put that problem on steroids.” He said in Onhio, people
got so turned off by the election they started ignoring the
tel evision advertisenents. He opined, "Wen you have people
ignoring the political debate, the country is harned. There
should be positive ads where people actually talk about what
they're going to do."

9:45: 33 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARA said CSSS HIR 8 wll level the playing
field, and he nment i oned getting rid of m sl eadi ng

adverti senents.

CHAIR LYNN said he does not think the proposed joint resolution
woul d elim nate m sl eadi ng adverti senents.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that is true, but the anobunt of noney
being spent on msleading advertising at this point is out of
control, and when a shadow group puts out a msleading
advertising, no one directly is blaned.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 12, 2013



9:46: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nentioned the Alias Addition Acts, which
he said disallowed criticism of U S. Congress or the President.
He said the resulting resolutions of 1798 defied the federal
government, much |ike addressing the federal overreach of the
US.  Suprene Court, which Representative Keller comended
Representative Gara for doing. He stated that the issue then
and now is the First Amendnent; the question being asked now is
whet her there should be any |limts. He said, "I appreciate your
saying ... and pointing out that we as individuals have
l[imts on what we and get, and | would | ook at that personally
as a bigger wong than what the [U S.] Suprene Court did." He
told the bill sponsor that this is an interesting issue, but
that he will have "a | ong ways to go" before he can vote for it.

9:48: 39 AM

M KE FRANK testified in support of HHR 8. He related that he is
an attorney who, in the '90s, drafted an initiative to reform
the state's canpaign finance laws via a group called, "Canpaign
Finance Reform Now. " He relayed that 600-700 signature
gatherers coll ected over 30,000 signatures to put the initiative
on the ballot; when the legislature at the tine passed
legislation with a simlar purpose, Lieutenant Governor Fran
Unmer took the initiative off the ballot. The law that was
passed was subsequently upheld by the Alaska Suprenme Court and
by the 9th Grcuit Court of Appeals. The |aw that existed at

the state level until the Ctizens United case had a provision
that forbid corporations, unions, and "the shadowy groups that
Representati ve Gar a ment i oned" from making i ndependent
expenditures in candidate elections; they were still allowed to
make i ndependent expenditures in the context of  ballot
pr oposi tions, as was consistent with the jurisprudences

surrounding the First Anendnent at the tine. M. Frank opined
that the |aw worked well until the Gtizens United case, which,
in effect, held that corporations, wunions, and other groups
should be allowed to make independent expenditures in candidate
el ections. He stated, "Since then, we've seen an explosion of
largely negative, msleading, sonetines false, and generally
uninformative advertising that doesn't help voters nake w se
decisions with respect to which candi date to oppose or support."”

CHAI R LYNN asked, "Wuld that fall under freedom of speech?"

MR. FRANK answered that it does according to the U S. Suprene
Court's decision, which he said "in effect equates nobney wth

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 12, 2013



freedom of speech.™ He said that decision dates back to the
Buckl ey v. Valeo case in 1976; however, after that, in Austin v.
M chi gan Chanber of Commerce, the U S. Suprene Court decided
that because corporations and unions could aggregate such
i nmense wealth, they could constitutionally be prohibited from
maki ng i ndependent expenditures. However, that all changed with
the Citizens United case, and he opined it will not get better
without a constitutional amendnent to forbid corporations,
uni ons, and ot her organi zations from making i ndependent
expenditures in the context of elections. He urged the
conmttee to support HIR 8. He said it is really up to each
state to decide how to best regulate its state and federal
el ecti ons of candi dates.

9:53:48 AM

KATHARINE VEH testified in support of HIR 8. She recoll ected
the second conmmandnent in the Holy Bible, regarding graven
i mages. She related, "So, |I'm saying, knowing all about the
separation of church and state, that this guides ne." She
posited that currently the U'S. Governnment is violating the
second conmmandnent, because "an enornobus part of being a
respected leader is to tap into the spiritual side of yourself”
and "spend sonme time in prayer with God," then speak with the

people and nmake |egislative decisions based on that. She
stated, "Money doesn't have anything to do wth it." She
clarified that decisions need to be nade about noney, but nopney
should not be a primary focus -a graven inmage - in the political
sphere.

M5. VEH further stated that it i1s imoral to buy and sell
candi dat es. She said, "Slavery was already outlawed over a
hundred years ago in the Thirteenth Anendnent."” She said it is
corrupt to give noney to candidates "for favor." She stated

"Candi dates are lined up on the auction block and sold to the
hi ghest bidder, and this is extrenely scary.” She expressed her
desire for people to like their political |eaders again, and she
related that her grandfather served his comunity and was
respect ed. She concluded, "This kind of integrity will happen
once a neasure of honesty is built into the system through a
constitutional anendnent.”

9:57:23 AM

CHAIR LYNN said noney is an inportant part of politics; it
facilitates comruni cation of the issues. He stated his support

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 12, 2013



of CSSS HIR 8, and he asked what the will of the commttee was
regardi ng the proposed joint resolution.

9:58: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he favors CSSS HIR 8. He said he
is interested in hearing nore from Representative Keller
regarding the First Anmendnent. He expressed appreciation for
the comments of M. Franks regarding Alaska's past |egislation
in 1996 to level the playing field. He said he does not think
CSSS HIR 8 would harm freedom of speech, but would nmake voices
equal by not allowing unlimted contributions. Not wi t hst andi ng
that, he said it sounds |ike nore discussion is needed.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER ventured that there would be people to
testify on both sides of this issue, and he said he would not
mnd |ooking for [testifiers who mght round out the opinions
heard]. He asked that the conmttee hold CSSS HIR 8.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS said she would like the bill to be held
"for the sane reasons."”

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said she agrees. She opined that the
states should be naking the decision rather than a federal
court. She said she would find it helpful to hear nore
testinmony from "groups that have worked on this issue.”

10: 00: 12 AM

CHAIR LYNN reiterated his strong support, and he announced that
CSSS HIR 8 was hel d over.

10: 00: 56 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:01
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- March 12, 2013



